

# Helping Hand<sup>™</sup>

# Metronidazole (Flagyl<sup>®</sup>, Flagyn ER<sup>®</sup>, MetroGel<sup>®</sup>, Metro-Gel-Vaginal<sup>®</sup>) – GYN

Metronidazole (Met roh NID ah zole) is the generic name for (Flagyl (FLAH jel<sup>®</sup>)). Other brand names for this medicine are MetroGel<sup>®</sup>, MetroGel-Vaginal<sup>®</sup>, and Flagyl ER<sup>®</sup>

This medicine is an antibiotic that treats certain infections by killing bacteria. It may be used to treat vaginal infections. A germ called trichomonas (trick uh MOE nus) causes these infections. Trichomoniasis (trick uh moe NIH uh sis) is a sexually transmitted infection (STI). Some other vaginal infections you do not get through sex are also treated with metronidazole. Male sex partner(s) should be treated at the same time. A male can carry the germs that cause these diseases but he may not have any symptoms. Even though he has no symptoms, he can still pass on the infection **until he is treated**. Symptoms usually go away in 2 to 3 days.

#### How to take this medicine

- Read the label carefully. Make sure you are taking the right dose. It is easy to confuse the many different dosage forms and strengths.
- Take the **exact dose** of medicine that your doctor ordered.
- Ask the pharmacist, nurse, or doctor before crushing any medicine.
- This medicine should be taken 1 hour **before** or 2 hours **after** eating. If your stomach gets upset, the medicine can be taken with food.
- It is very important to finish **all** the medicine that is ordered for \_\_\_\_\_ days. Do not stop the medicine early, even if you are feeling better.

## If you forget to take a dose

If you forget to take a dose of this medicine, take it as soon as possible. If it is almost time for the next dose, do not take the missed dose at all. Do not double the next dose. Instead, go back to your regular dosing schedule. If you have any questions about this, check with your doctor or pharmacist.

#### If a dose is vomited

- If you gag or choke and spit out the dose **before swallowing it**, relax for a minute and then take the same amount one more time.
- Even if the medicine is thrown up (vomited) right after taking it, do not repeat the dose.
  Some of the medicine may still be in the stomach. Do not repeat the dose unless it is in tablet form and you can see that the whole tablet was vomited. The vomiting might be due to the strong taste of the medicine.
- If vomiting happens again with future doses, call your doctor.

#### **Medicine storage**

- Store all medicine out of the reach of children.
- Always keep medicine in the original bottle from the pharmacy.
- Do not keep this medicine in the refrigerator. Store it at room temperature.
- Light and moisture make this medicine not work as well. Keep the bottle tightly closed. Store it in a dark, dry place. Do not keep it in the bathroom or above the kitchen sink.
- Keep this medicine away from heat or direct sunlight.
- Do not use this medicine after the expiration date printed on the container.



**Picture 1** Read the label. Your child should not have products that have alcohol. Alcohol can be dangerous.

• When the medicine is no longer needed, mix the leftover medicine with material you are going to throw away, like coffee grounds. Put the mixture into a container or a bag that will not leak. Throw the container in the trash where children and pets cannot reach it.

## **Drug – nutrient interactions**

- You should not drink alcohol. Mixing this medicine with alcohol can cause severe nausea, vomiting, cramps, headache, flushing (redness of the face) and can be dangerous. Some cold medicines, cough syrups, and mouthwashes have alcohol.
- Check with the doctor or pharmacist before taking over-the-counter medicines. Do not drink alcohol for another 2 days after you have finished taking metronidazole.
- This medicine should not be taken with these products or medicines: alcohol, rifampin, phenobarbital, phenytoin (Dilantin®), lithium, and warfarin (Coumadin®).

# Warning

If you are allergic to metronidazole, you should not take this medicine.

# Special note for female patients

- If you think you might be pregnant, you should tell the doctor before you begin taking this or any medicine. This medicine may cause problems if taken during pregnancy.
- If a patient is breast-feeding, she should tell her doctor before she begins taking this or any medicine. This medicine can pass into breast milk and cause side effects in the baby.

# **Possible side effects**

- Taste of "metal" in the mouth
- Brown-colored urine
- Rash

- Nausea, loss of appetite, dry mouth
- Diarrhea
- Vomiting (not common)
- Numbness or tingling of fingers or toes

## What to do about side effects

- If a skin rash happens, stop taking the medicine and call your doctor.
- For the "metal" taste, chew sugarless gum or suck on sugarless candy.
- For nausea, take this medicine with food. If you get drowsy or sleepy, do not ride a bike or operate machinery, like a lawnmower or car. Do not take part in any activities where you must stay alert and awake.

# When to call for emergency help

Call for emergency help if your child has any of these signs of an allergic reaction: trouble breathing, swelling of the tongue, or swelling of the hands, feet or ankles.

# When to call the doctor

Call the doctor if you have:

- Numbness or tingling, unsteady walk, shakiness of the hands, or dizziness
- Nausea or vomiting that doesn't go away
- Irritated mouth or "furry" tongue
- Skin rash, hives, redness, or itching
- Any side effects that continue or are very bothersome

#### Other advice about the medicine

- Avoid having sex until the infection is gone. If you do have sex, the male should always wear a condom.
- Do not douche.
- Wear only clean cotton panties and pantyhose with cotton crotches until the infection is cured. Do not wear panties made of silk, nylon, Dacron<sup>®</sup>, or other man-made fabrics. These do not let air flow freely around the vagina. They make it easier for bacteria and other germs to grow.
- Do not stop taking this medicine or change the amount you take without first talking with the doctor or pharmacist. The infection will not go away and you will need more antibiotic.
- The doctor has prescribed this medicine for you **only**. Do not give it to anyone else.
- Tell your teacher, school nurse, coach, and others you are taking this medicine and what side effects to watch for.
- Your school will need a note from your parent and from the doctor if the medicine is to be given at school by the school nurse. Ask your pharmacist for 2 labeled bottles if they will be giving this medicine.
- Tell your doctor and pharmacist if you have a strange or allergic reaction to any medicine.
- If you carry medicine in your purse, keep it in its childproof bottle. Keep your purse out of the reach of children.
- Take all your medicines with you **in the original bottles** whenever you see a doctor, go to an emergency room or are admitted to the hospital. This helps doctors who may not know you.
- Learn the name, spelling, and dose of this medicine. You will need to know these things when you call your doctor or pharmacist.
- If you take too much of this medicine, or if someone else takes this medicine, first call the Central Ohio Poison Center at 1-800-222-1222 (TTY 614-228-2272). They will tell you what to do.

If you have any questions, be sure to ask the doctor, nurse, or pharmacist.